Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
January 14,2019

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, January 14, 2014 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioners Tim Fowler, Charles Salter, Eber
Warren and Carolyn Casey.

MEMBERS ABSENT:
OTHERS PRESENT: Dennis Humenik, Richard Skreba, and Dariene Daniels, Town Cierk.
Mayor Potter called the meeting to order by having a moment of silence.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revisions to the proposed agenda. There being none,
Commission Warren motioned to accept the agenda as presented. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Fowler made a motion to accept the minutes from the December 10. 2013

meeting. All ayes. Motion passed.

Public Comments; Richard Skreba spoke concerning the sewage treatment plant planned by
Wayfarer’s Cove and the amount of rubbish piling up at the rear of his property. Mr. Skreba
typed up his concerns and statements and they are attached to the minutes. Mayor Potter stated
that at this time he was not aware of Wayfarer’s Cove moving any debris or work being done at
the site. The Lakefront property of Wayfarer’s Cove was made up of several LLCs and the final
plat had not been approved for them to begin any work on the site or the sewage treatment plant.
The Lakefront property of Wayfarers’ Cove, it appears, would be required to start the process
from step one to have a final plat approved in order to build.

Commissioner Fowler suggested that Mr. Skieba speak to Tom McCrary regarding the debris
that was over flowing on to Mr. Skreba’s property. Mr. Skreba stated that he had contacted Mr.
McCrary and at the time Mr. McCrary was busy and would get back with Mr. Skreba. Mr.
Skreba then went on to say that he would contact Mr. McCrary again.

Dennis Humenik requested that the Town display flags to the end of Bennett Road.
Commissioner Warren stated that at one time the flags did go past Larry Whorton’s house.
Mayor Potter asked the Town Clerk to have Larry Hackney, maintenance, ensure there were
brackets on all the poles to the end of Bennett Road.

Town Managers Report: No zoning permits have been issued.
Unfinished Business:
Confirmation of the Commissioners Areas of Responsibility - Mayor Potter. Mayor Potter stated

this information was shared at the December 10 meeting. The only changes Mayor Potter
suggested was to add Streets & Drainage to the Public Works Officer to Commissioner Salter

Page 1 of 4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
January 14,2074

and Community Watch to Commissioner Casey. Mayor Potter asked for a motion to approve the
responsibilities of the Commissioners for the 2013-2015 term. Commissioner Fowler motioned.
All ayes. Motion passed.

Status of Country Club West - Commissioner Fowler. Commissioner Fowler stated he and
Kenney Heath looked at the site together. Kenny Heath cleaned a lot of trees and shrubs and did
a good job. The cost was $1400.00 and in his opinion was money well spent. Some of the tiles
were not originally instailed properly. The falf of the tiles is not enough. Commissioner Fowler
stated further that a lot of water drains through this spot causing it to wash away. One of the tiles
is too high. Commissioner Fowler requested Larry Hackney, maintenance, place some stone or
riprap around the spot. Commissioner Fowler stated that other than placing the stone/riprap there
is not much else to be done other than replacing the tiles and that should be done when the Town
decides to redo the road. Commissioner Fowler also stated that this is something the Town
needs to stay on top of. It was let go for far too long.

Bennett Landing — Commissioner Fowler. Commissioner Fowter reminded the Board this had to
do with the conversion of the condominiums into townhouses. Commissioner Fowler stated that
afier researching and getting the Planning Board involved it was decided to contact Town
Attorney, Jimmy Hicks and get his opinion. Commissioner Fowler stated the Town had received
a confidential email and letter from Attorney Hicks which he then read to the Board. Attorney
Hicks stated the condo laws under Chapter 47C provide a loop hole around subdivision and
zoning issues. Chapter 47C trumps the Towns” UDO. The Town is preempted from taking any
action much less disapproval. The condos can be terminated without the approval of the Town
and the best course for the Town is to take “No Action”. Commissioner Fowler recommended
taking no action in the decision to terminate the condos. Mayor Potter stated that he had called
Mr. Hollowell and advised him of Attorney Hicks’ recommendation and there was no need for
him to attend the BOC meeting. It was further stated by Mayor Potter there was no need to send
a copy of the letter from Attorney Hicks to Mr. Hollowell.

New Business:

Goals and Directions of the Town — Mayor Potter. Mayor Potter explained that 2-3 years ago a
list of goals and directions was compiled for the Town. These items were spelled out in the
minutes from March 9, 2010

General Ordinances — Done

Paving Ann Drive — Done

Ethics Training (March 25, 2010) — Done

Water Tower Removal — Done

Beach Access — No Progress

Citizen Involvement - Marginal

Town Improvement — Pictures, History, L.ogo — No Progress

MBS

Page2 of 4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
January 14, 2074

Mayor Potter passed out a handout that is attached to the minutes and requested the Board make
a list of items they would like to see as goals and directions and to prioritize this list for the
meeting on February 11, 2014. Mayor Potier suggested some items to be included would be:

Identify and Clarify unclear statement/policies in the UDO
Publish/document a history of the town pre and post incorporation
Uttlization of the water tower property

Improve citizens” involvement in areas such as beautification, grant writing,
community social activities, etc.

Beach access

Town Hall buildings and grounds improvements, interiorly and exteriorty
Update town truck

Utilization of the Planning Board, etc.

e DO I

P9 S h

Mayor Potter requested a motion to approve pursuing Goals and Directions for the Town for
2013-2015. Commissioner Salter motioned. All Ayes. Motion passed.

Planning Board — Commissioner Fowler. Commissioner Fowler stated that several issues have
come up for the Planning Board. The first issue is new members for the three vacancies.
Commissioner Fowler noted that he had two candidates to fill two of the vacancies. Richard
Hughes and Adam Garfinkel have agreed. Richard Hughes has lived in Minnesott Beach for 25
vears. He works at the hospital and has a Real Estate license but is not active in it.

Commissioner Fowler told the BOC that Adam Garfinkel had stopped by Town Hali and wanted
to know how he could help. He is an Attorney licensed in New York not in North Carolina. He
is an instructor at Craven Community College in the Law Dept. Commisstoner Fowler felt that
Adam could provide a different perspective to the PB.

Commissioner Fowler moved that the BOC approve Richard Hughes and Adam Garfinkel to the
PB. All Ayes. Motion passed. Commissioner Warren asked if the other vacancy had been filled
and Commissioner Fowler stated that he was holding off filling it because he had approached
Arlington Place to see if a resident would be interested in filling the vacancy. Mayor Potter
questioned if it was management that was being approached and Commissioner Fowler stated it
was not management, but a resident.

Commissioner Fowler recommended Richard Beland as Vice Chairman for the PB. Richard
Beland volunteered to be Vice Chair and Commissioner Fowler motioned him to be approved.
All ayes. Motion passed

Commissioner Fowler stated the PB decided their meeting time needed to be changed. It would
be held on the 1 Thursday of each month at 4:00 pm. Dennis Humenik stated that this was a
temporary change for one member. Commissioner Fowler asked if this time met with the PB
Chairman’s’ approval and Chairman Humenik approved.

Page 3 of 4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners’ Meeting
January 14, 20 /4

Commissioner Fowler stated the PB requested the BOC provide their Vision of the Town. This
was provided to the PB several years ago and is in the minutes from April 13, 2010. This will
help the PB in their revisions of the UDO. Commissioner Fowler read the statement from the
above mentioned minutes. “The general consensus of the BOC was that Minnesott Beach would
remain a primarily single family retirement community with some small business entities.”
Commissioner Fowler requested the board consider this statement when considering the goals for
the town and reaffirm this is the vision wanted or add/delete to this statement.

Commissioner Fowler continued that the PB is looking to update the UDO and they would like
to tackle definitions. The updating of the UDO has been a goal for years and the best way will
be in small incremental steps. The first step will be the clarifications on definitions. The PB is
requesting the BOC provide any definitions that need to be clarified. Mr. Humenik stated the PB
would like to start with what the BOC feels needs the most difficult definitions. Commissioner
Fowler stated that the PB is looking for guidance from the BOC. Mayor Potter stated that he
could think of a couple immediately. “Attached and Unattached”’; Condominiums/Townhouses.
Commissioner Fowler asked that the BOC provide any suggested definitions at the next meeting.
Mayor Potter thanked Commissioner Fowler for his information on the PB.

Commissioner Reports:

Commissioner Warren provided the budget report for the period ending December 31, 2013.
It reflected the following: First Citizens Checking, $13,406.05; First Citizens Money Market,
$228,039.81; North Carolina Management Trust, $200,571.97; First South Bank Savings,
$104,651.48 and First South Bank CD, $40,662.51.

Mayor Potter requested that on the Budget Performance Report that the word “Used” on the
revenue section be changed to “Accrued”.

Mayor Potter reminded the Board of the required ethics training on Jan. 27, 2014. 6:30 pm to
8:30 pm at the ECC office in New Bern. Mayor Potter will be out of town and unable to attend.
The rest of the board will be in attendance.

Mayor Potter called for a motion to adjourn. All ayes. Motion passed.

Darlene Daniels, Town ~ Clerk

Page 4 of 4



